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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF WEST VIRGINIA

- CLARKSBURG DIVISION
. UNITED STATES OF AMERICA )
| A )
- Plaintiff, <) o
‘ ) . Civil ActionNo. 1:11-Cv-28
S ) (Judge Keeley)
‘ o ‘ ) COMPLAINT
CONSOL ENERGY, INC., CONSOLIDATION ) '
'COAL COMPANY, and WINDSOR COAL COMPANY )
Defendants. - )
)

The United States of America (“United Sté.teé”), by authority of t‘hevAttomgy Geﬁéral of the
United States and through the undersigned attorneys on behalf of the Administrator of the United
States Environmiental Protection Agency (‘EPA”), files this Complaint and alieges as follows: -

INTRODUCTION

_ 1. This is a civil action brought pursuant to Secti%)"n 369(b) and (d) of the Federal Water
‘ ,Poilution Control Act (“Clean Water Act”VOr the “CWA”),. 33U.8.C. §§ 13 i9(b) and (d). Plaintiff
_gllegels that Defet;dants dis;charged and Vﬁll .cominue to dischargg polIu@ts 'into waters of the United |
St’afes in viqlétion of Section 301 of thé CWA,. 33 U.S.C. § 1311, Plaintiff also alleges that
Defendants are in violation of the conditions and limitations of Nétional Poilutaﬁt Dischargevv o
EIiminatiQﬁ System (“NPDES”) permits issu‘ed by West Vfrginia pursuaﬁt to Secfion 402 .of the
CWA, 33 US.C. § 1342. |
o 2. Plaintiff seeks permanent injunctive relief and civil penalties égainst Defendants to
| half their il_léga‘l discharges of pollutants into waters 6f the United States ew;s aufhorized Ey Sections

309(b) and (d) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1319(b) and (d).
Bty | , :
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE
| 3. This Couﬁ has jﬁrisdicﬁtibn 6ver the suiject matter of this action under Section 309(b) |
of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(b), and under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1345, and 1355.
4. Venue is proper in(the Northern District of West Virginia pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§
1391(b) and (c) and 1395(a), as well as Section 309(b) of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(b),
'beéause.it is the judicial district in whibh Defendants_ are Iocated, reside, and/or are doing buéinéss,
_and/or in Which the majority of the violatiqns allegéd in the Complaint occurred. |
5. Notice of COmmeﬁCemént' of this action has been given to the State of West Virginia
" in accordance with Section 309(b) of the CWA, 33 US.C. § 1319(b)

DEFENDANTS

6. Consol Energy, Inc. (“Cbnsol”) is a Delaware corporation wfth its principal piace of
businesé at CNX Center, 1000 Consol Energy Drive, Canonsburg,'Pennsylvénia. |

7. . Consolidation Coal Company is a DélaWare cdrporation with its pﬁncipal place of

" business af CNX Centef, 1000 Cbnéoi Energy Drive, Canonsburg, Penﬁsylvania -

8. - Windsor Coél Cbnipany isa West Virginia éorporation with its prihcipal place of

| bﬁsiﬁéss at CNX Center, 1000 Consol Energy Drive, Canonsburg, PeﬁnsylVaniai; . |

STATUTORY AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
9 .. Section 301(a) of the CWA, 33 US.C. § 131 1(a), i)rohibits the ‘;discharge of any
g péllutant by any. person” to waters of the United States, except, 'iizzter alia, in cofnpliarice withan
NPDES permit issugd by EPA or an authorized stat.e’ pursuant to Section 402 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C.
§1342. . | -

10.  Section 402(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1342(a), provides that the permit-issuing
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authority may issue an NPDES permit that authorizes the discharge of any pollutant to waters of the
United States, upon the condition that such discharge will meet all applieable requirements of the
_CWA and such other conditions as the permitting authonty determines to be necessary to catry out
the provisions of the CWA. '
11. Section 402 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1342, directs the AdIninistrator to prescribe
conditions for NPDES permits to assure compliance with the requirements of the CWA, including
"conditions on data and information collection, reporting, and such other requirements as the
Administrator deems appropriate. | -
12, Effluent limitations, as defined in Section 502(1 1) of the CWA, 33 US.C, §
1362(1 1), are restrictions on quantity, rate, and conoentfation of chemical, physical, biologtcal, and
other constituents which are discharged from point sources. Effluent limitations are among the
conditions and limitations preScribed in NPDES permits issued under Section 402(a) of the CWA, 33
US.C. § 1342(a) | | o
13. Sectlon 303(d) of the CWA, 33 U.S. C §13 13(d) requlres that states adopt ambient
water -quality standards and estabhsh water quahty criteria for particular water bodies that will
protect the designated uses of the water. Seéction 301(b)(1)(C) of the CWA 33 US.C. § |
.1 3 1 1 (b)( D(C), prot/ides that when technology-based effluent limits are insufficient to keep receiving
waters within those levels, the pennit must include stricter water quality based effluent limits that
‘reflect water quality standards and criteria. - | |
14. Section 402(b) of the CWA 33 U S.C. § 1342(b), provides that EPA may authorize a
state to implement and administer an approved NPDES program within the state. At all relevant

times, the State of West Virginia has been authorized by EPA to administer an NPDES program for
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regﬁlating the discharges of poliutants to navigable waters within the state’s jurisdiction. 47 Fed.
Reg. 22363-01 (May 24, 1982). Pursuant to W.Va. Code §§ 22-1-5, 22-1-7, and.‘22-1 1-4, the West.
Virginia 'Departrﬁent of Environmehtal Protection (“WVDEP”j, through the Director of the Division
~ of Water and Waste Manage;ﬁent, is the state regﬁlatpry agency that administers the NPDES permit
program in West Virginia, . .
15.  The West Virginia water quality standards!are set forth in West Virginia Code of State
Rules Title 47, Series 2. West Virgiﬁia Code of State Rules Title 47, Series 2, Appendix E sets forth
nﬁmeric water qualify st'andards‘ for \farious parameters based on water body use designation. The
acute standard for chloride based on an aquatic llife ﬁse designation is a one hour average
| concen&ation of 860 mg/l not to be exceeded more than once every three years on the average. Thé »
. chronic standard for chloride based on an aﬁuat,ic life usé designation is a foﬁr—day average
concenﬁation of 230 mg/l, not to be exceeded more than once every three years on the averége.
W.Va. C.S.R. § 47-2 Aép. E. | |
16.‘ Wes“t Virginia Code of‘State Rulés Title 47, Series 2, SectiQn 3 sets forth coxlldition'sv
‘. not alldwab]e in stéte waters. Section 3.2:i states that “no signiﬁcant adverse impact to the chemiéal,
physical, hydrologic, band Biblogical components of the aquatic ecosystem shall be allowed.” W.Va.
C.S.R. §47-2-3.2.i. | | |
17. | Section 309(b) of fhe CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(b), authorizes the Administrator to
commence a civil action for appropriate relief, including a permanent or temporary injunction,
égaihst any person who violafes Sebtion 301 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311, or violates any permif
: condition or limitation in a permit issued pursuant to Section 402 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1342.

18.  Section 309(d) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(d), provides thaf any person who

4
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violates Section 301 of the CWA, 33 US.C. § 131 1, or violates any permit condition or limitation in
a perrmt 1ssued pursuant to Sectlon 402 of the CWA 33 U.S.C. § 1342, shall be subjeot toa cml

penalty payable to the United States of up to $25,000 per day for each v1olatlon

19, Pursuant to the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation Ad)ustment Act 0f 1990, 28 U.S.C & |

24,61 note, as Mended by the Debt Col]eotion Improvement Act of 1996, 31 U.S.Cl § 3701 note, 69 .
: Fed. Reg. 71'21 (Feb. 13, 2064),'and 74 Fed. Reg. 626 (Jan. 7,2009), 40 C.F.R. § 19, EPA may seek .
civil ponalties of up to $32,5(§O per day.for each violation occurring between March 15,2004 and
J_anuary 12, 2009, and up to $37,500 per day for éach violation occurring after January 12, 2009.
GENERAL ALLEGATIONS -
20, THeD‘e‘fe'ndants named herein are “parsons” w1th1n .the meaning of Section 5 02(5) of
the CWA, 33 US.C. § 1362(5). |
21, At all relevant times, Consol. managed, directed, or conti'olled environmontal
compliance at the facilities owned/operated by Consolidation Coal Conlpany and Windsor Coal
Company (collectively, “Subsidiaries”). | |
22 - At all relevant times, Consol;and its Subsidiaries (oollecﬁvely, “Defendants™) did
' business in West Virginia. | |
23 Defendants own and/or operato coal mines and associated faciliﬁes, including
wastewater treatment facilities. As part of their operations Dofendants generate wastewater thap -
,contalns various pollutants” as that term is deﬁned in Section 502(6) of the CWA, 33 U SC.§
' .1362(6), and 40 CF. R §122.2, 1nclud1ng chloride.
24, Consol’slSubmdlanes obtamed NPDES permits for discharges. of thoir wastewater

from WVDEP. The respective NPDES permits contain effluent limitations prohibiting discharges of
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- specified pollutants in excess of numeric monthly average, daily maximum, and/or daily minimum
limits, and also incorporate by referenee West Virginia’s water quality standards.

25.  Blacksville No. 2. On May 17, 2006, WVDEP te-issued NPDES Permit No. |

WV0064602 to Consohdatlon Coal Company for dlscharges related to the Blacksyille No 2 deep
| mine facilities. The permit included llmlts on the monthly average and daily maximum dlscharges of

chlonde from Qutlet 003 begmmng on June 27 2007 ' |
26.  On Apnl 7,2008, WVDEP modified Permit No. WV0064602 to allow the Blacksville
No. 2 mine wastewater treatment: facrhty to dlscharge from Outlet 005 The effect of the
‘ modlﬁcatlon was that the wastewater that was prevmusly d1scharged from Outlet 003 could now be
‘discharged from Outlet 005. The permrt as modrﬁed d1d not include numeric limits for chloride for

' Outlet 005. -

, 27.' Loveridge Deep Mine No 22. OnMay 16, 2005, WVDEP re-issued NPDES Permit

No. WV004071 1 to Consohdatlon Coal Company for dlscharges related to the Lovendge Deep Mine
,No. 22 facilities. The permit included limits on the monthly average and daily maximurn discharges

of chloride from Outlets 001, 007, and 016 beginning on June 27, 2007.

28. © »Robiknsen‘ Run Mine No. 95. On May 31, 2005, WVDEP re-issued NPDES Permit
. No. WVOO93505 tovConsolidatiorr Coal Company for discharges related to the Robinson Run Mine
No. 95.  The permir i_nclﬁded limits on the monthly average' and daily maximum discharges of
chloride from Outlet 011 beginning on June 27, 2007. |

29. - Four States Deep Mine Complex. On May 26, 2006, WVDEP re-lssued NPDES

Permit No. WV0050598 to Consohdatlon Coal Company for dlscharges related to the Four States

Deep Mine Complex and related facilities. The permit included immediately effective limits on the
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mopthly average and daily maximum discharges of chloride from Outlet QOZ.- . |

30. Shoemaker Mine. On Janﬁary‘lO, 2606, WVDEP re-issued NPDES Permit No.
WV0004201 to Consolidation Coal Company for discharge;s related to the-Shoemaker Mine and
reiated facilities. The permit included innnediatély effective Iimits on fhé rﬁonthly avefagé and daily
ﬁmimm dischargés of cﬁloride from Outlets 003 and‘()l 8.

31.  HuffRun Acid Mine Drainage (“AMD”) Treatment Plant. VOn'February‘ 16, 2006,

WVDEP issued NPDES Permit Nd. WV1011456 to Windsor Coal Company fo? discharges related
fo the Huff Run AMD Plant, The permit included immediately effective limits on the monthly
average and daily méximum discharges of chloride from Outlet 001. | |
32.  OnSeptember 30, 2008, WVDEP issued an '_(Srder quify.ing the permits and outlets
identiﬁed in Paragraphs 25 and 27~3 1 above “suspending” éffluent limits for chloride (the ‘fOrder’f).
Under the Order, interim chloride l'imits_becan'le effective on October 2, 2010 and final chloride
limits bécoﬁ;c effective on September 6, 2013. |
33.. At all: relevant timeé, Defendants have discharged pollutants from various
impoundments and seﬁlement pol“lds,.outlets, ditches, and other conveyances subject to the NPDES .
- permits identified in 'Paiagraphs 25-31 that are “point sources” vvifhin the meaning of Section
502(14) of fhe' Clean Water ‘.Act, 33 US.C. § 1362(14). The.se point sources have discharged
pollutants into sfreamg, rivers, and other waters of the United States, within the meaning of Seétion
502(7) of'the CWA, 33 U.S.C.v § 1362(7), and the;federal regulations implementing the CWA at 40
- CFR.§1222.
34,  The receiving waters into wﬁich Defendants have diécharged pollutants pursuant. to

the 'pennittéd outlets identified in Paragraphs 25-31 are identified by NPDES permit number and

7
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outlet location in 'Appendix A to this Complaint Each of these receiving waters is either a trihutary
i or unnamed tributary that (a) is a perennial tnbutary to a traditional navigable water or (b) flows into
‘perenmal tributaries to a tradltional nav1gable water. See Appendrx A.
| 35. All of the receiving waters into whlch the Defendants have dlscharged pollutants have
ause deSignation for the propag‘ation and maintenance of aquatle life in warmwater fisheries.
CLAIM 1: VIOLATIONS OF CHLORIDE EFFLUENT LIMITATIONS
36.‘ Paragraphs 1- 35 are re-alleged and lncorporated by reference |
37.  As set forth in Appendlx B to this Complaint, and further deseribed below,
Defendante"have exceeded applicable NPDES permit limits for chloride discharges a total of least
470 times. This includes at least 291 violations of claily maximum limitations and at least 179
v1olat10ns of monthly average limitations. - | |
| 38. ' Blacksville No. 2 (NPDES Perm1t No. WV0064602) The May 17 2006 perrmt set
' anaverage rnonthly limit for chloride dlscharges of 218 mg/land a maximum daily limit for chlonde
- discharges of 378 mg/l from Outlet 003 beglnmng on June 27, 2007 As set forth in Appendtx B,
‘ from Jtme 27, 2007 through Septernber 30, 2008, Consol and Consolidation Coal Company wolated
the daily maximum chl_oride efﬂuent limitation for Outlet 003 at leaet, 18 times, and the rnonthlyA
: average chloride effluent limitation at least 11 times. | |
39.  Loveridge Deep Mine No. 22 (NPDES Pe’rmit No. WVOO4071 1). The May 16,2005
perrnit set an average monthly limit for ehloride clischarges of 218 mg/l ancl amaximum daily limit
for chloride discharges of 378 mg/1 from Outlets 001 007, and 016 beginning on June 27, 2007 As
set forth in Appendix B, from June 27, 2007 through September 30,2008, Consol and Consolidation

- Coal Company. violated' the daily maximum chloride effluent limitations for Outlets 001, 007, and
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016 a total of at least 68 times, and the monthly average chloride effluent limitations a total of at

least 40 times.

40. - 'Robinson Run Mine No. 95 (NPDES Permit No. WV0093505). The May 31,2005

* permit setan averagé monthly limit for chloride discharges of 218 mg/l and a maximum_ daily limit
for chloride discharges of 378-mg/l from Outlet 011 beginning on June 27, 2007. As set forth in

| Appendix B, from June 27, 2007 through Séptember 30, 2008, Consol and Consolida_tibn Cdal
Cofﬂpany violated the m;)nthly average chloride effluent lirnitaﬁons for Outlet 01 1 atleast 5 times.

41.-  Four States Deep Mlne Complex (NPDES Permit No. WV0050598). The May 26,

2006 perrmt set an average monthly limit for chloride discharges 0f 218 mg/l and a maximum dally
limit for chloride discharges of 378 mg/1 from Outlet 002. As set forth in Appendix B, from May 26,v '
.20.06 through'Septembgr 30, 2008; Consol and Consolidation Coal Company violated the daily
maximum chloride effluent limitations for Outlet 002 at least 34 times, ahd the monthly av;:rage
chloride efﬂlient limitations at ieast 27 times.
42,  Shoemaker Mipe (NPDES Pe@it No. WV0004201). The January 10, 2006 permit -

“set an average monthly limit for chloride discharges of 218 mg/l and a méximum daily limit for
chloridé discharges of 378 mg/l from Outlgts' 003 and 018. Asset forth in Appendix B, from January
10,2006 throﬁgh September 30, 2008, Consol and Consolidation Coal Company violated the daily

~ maximum chloride efﬂueﬁt limitations for Outlets 003 and 018 a total of at least 111 times, and the

: r.nomhlyl average chloride effluent limitations a total of ai least 6,5' times.

- 43, Huff Run AMD Treatment Plant (NPDES Permit No. WV1011456). The February

'16, 2006 permit set an average monthly limit for chloride dischaiges of 218 mg/l and a maximum

" daily limit for chloride discharges of 378 mg/l from Outlet 001; As set forth in Appendix B, from
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February 16, 2006 through September 30, 2008, Cbnsdl and Windsor Coal Company violated the
daily maximum chloride efﬂu;:nt limitations for Outlet 001 _af least 60 times, and thé monthly
average chloride effluent limitations at Jeast 31 times. ,
CLAIM 2: VIOLATIONS OF WATER QUALITY STANDARDS
- 44, Paragraphs 1-35 are re-alleged and incorporated by reference.

45, At all times relevant ntov this 'claim, ‘NP]l)E'S Permit Nos. WV0064602 and
WV0040711 incorporated by refefence WestAVirginia Code of State Rules § 47-30-5.1, which
includes the réquirement that “the discharge or discharges covered by a WV/NPDES permit are to be
of such quality so as not to cause violation of applicable water quality standards adopted by the
‘Department ‘of: Environmental Protection, Title 47, Series 2.” Title 47 , Series 2 of the West Virginia
qué of State Rulgs includes the requirement th;’:lt the discharge have “no significant adverse impact
_to the chemical, physical, hydrologic, and biological components of thé aquatié ecosystem."’ 47‘
C;S.R. 2§3.2.4. | | |

" 46. - Consol and Consolidation Coal Company operate mining faéilities associated with
NPDES Permit Nos. WV0064602 (the “Blacksville No. 2 Permit”) and WV0040711 (the ‘;Lovefidge
Perrnit”). The disc‘:h.arges from Outlets 003 bancbl 005 authorized by the Blaéksville No. 2 Permit and
fromOﬁtlet 016 authorized by the Low)eridge Pefmit provide rﬁost of the constituent flow for the
immg—:diate receiving waters. These-dischargés are primarily a result of pumpiﬁg the Blacksville No.

-2 and Lover.idge mine .pools.

: 47.  Loveridge Outlet 016 (“St. Leo”) discharges into South Fork upstream of Blacksville |

No. 2 Outlet 005 (“Velone Pond”). Velone Pond dis.chargés intoj West Virginia Férk, which

- discharges into Dunkard Creek.

10
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48, At all times relevant to .this clairn, the Blacksville No. 2 and Loveridge Permits
included the requirement that Consolidation»Coal Company monitor in-srream chloride levels. The
per’mits. required that the in-stream monitoring be done at approximately thée same time as the
rnonitori'ng of the outlet dischyarge’points. | |

49. Monitoring results reported by Consol demonstrate that from at least May 1, 2009
‘through NoVember 30,2009, significant amounts of chloride were discharged from St. Leo, causing |
in-stream le\iels to rise well above the acute water quality standard for chloride.’

50.. Monitoring results reported by Consol demonstrate that from at least August 1,2009
through September 19, 2009, signiﬁcant amounts of chloride were discharged from the Vel‘one Pond,
caus'ing in-stream levels to rise Well' above the acute water' quality standard for chloride

51. In-stream chloride levels at the levels observed durmg the May to November 2009
time penod inthe recelvmg streams for the Velone Pond and St. Leo discharges can lead to increased
rnortality in the resident aquatic life, resulting _in an impaired water body.

52. Sampling conducted by EPA and WVDEP vindicate that during at least Septem'ber of
2009 high levels of total dissolved: solids (“TDS_”_) _were present in the receiving yuate_rs for the
Velone Pond and St. Leo discharges. .

53 TDS chscharges at the levels observed dunng the September 2009 time period i in the
rece1v1ng streams for the Velone Pond and St. Leo discharges can cause toxic effect in the resident
aquatic hfe Increased salinity due to total dlssolved sohds affects gllls and other resplratory |
structures of fish, mussels, amphibian, and aquatic macro-invenebrates, and can also impact certain
life states, such as the ova. As with chloride, increased TDS can lead to increaSed rnortali.ty in the

resident aquatic life and to imnairment of the stream.

11
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54, -WVDEP biological assessment data from September of 2009 demonstrates that the
aquatic macro-mvertebrate communities downstream of the Velone Pond and St. Leo dlscharges '
were severely impaired and damaged.

| 55, In addltlon on . or about September 2, 2009, and extendmg for several weeks

thereafter, a massive and devastatmg fish, mussel, and salamander kill (the “fish klll”) was reported

in the Dunkard Creek watershed which transects both northern West Virginia and southern

, .Pennsylvanla Investxgatlons by EPA and WVDEP have determmed that the fish k111 was caused by

toxins released from a species of golden algae (Prymnesium parvum) assoclated with and comrnonly‘

thriving in brackish, briny water or water high in TDS, Chlorideisa major component of the TDS in
Dunkard Creekt _ |

56.  Chloride and TDS discharges from'Consol’s mines created and/or contributed to the
_creation of condttions faVorahle for the golden algae to‘, thrive and bloom, which ultimately led to the
fish kill. | |

57. Based on -the above-allege‘d 'facts Consol and Consolidation Coal. VCompany'violated
NPDES Permit Nos, WV0064602 and WV0040711 by dlschargmg e]evated levels of chlorlde and
TDS, which caused significant adverse 1mpact to the chemrcal physmal hydrologic, and/or |
biological components of the aquatic ecosystem. .

| | CLAIM 3 FOR RELIEF

58. - Paragraphs 1-57 are re-alleged and incorporated by reference.

59. During the period relevant to this Complaint, Defendants have discharged pollutants
from point sources in excess of effluent limitations for .chloride into waters of the United States. |

60.  During the period relevant to this: Complaint, Consol and Consolidation Coal

12
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.Company drscharged pollutants in violation of the 'water quality standards incerporated .into. its
NPDES. permits into waters of the United States.

61. For each exceedance of the chioride effluent limitations and violation of the narrative
water quality standards, Defendanits are in violation‘ef tne terms of the applieable NPDES permit
under Section 402 of the CWA.

| 62. Unless'enjoined, Defendants’ violations will cb_ntinue.

63.  Pursuant to'Sectien 309(b) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 13 1 9(b)v, Defendants are liable
for permanent injunctive relief, | . |

64. Pursuant to Section 309(d) of the CWA, 33U.8, C §13 19(d), Defendants are hable ,
for c1v1l penaltles of up to $32,500 per day of v1olat10n for all v1olat10ns occurnng between March
15, 2004 and January 12, 2009, and up to $37,500 per day of violation for all v1olat10ns occurring
after January 12,2009. |

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE Plalntlff the United States of Amenca respectful]y prays that this Court; -

1. Permanently enjoin Defendants from discharging pollutants except as expressly
authorlzed by the CWA and the limitations and conditions of NPDES permits held by Consol S

' Subsidiaries. | |

2. . Order Defendants to take all 'necessary steps to cemply with the CWA and the

limitations and conditions of the applicable NPDES permits.
© 3. o Assess civil pen.altiesag'ainst Defendants up to $32,500 per' day for eaeh violation of
. the CWA or any apphcable NPDES pernnt that occurred between March 15, 2004 and January 12,

2009 and up to $37 500 per day for each v1olat10n of the CWA or any apphcable NPDES permit that '

13
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* occurred after January 12, 2009.

4, Grant such other relief as the Court may deem appropriate.

Respectfully submitted,

'FOR THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

IGWACIA S, MORENO
Assistant Attorney General

Environment & Natural- Resources Division
'U.S. Department of Justice

LAURA A. THOMS ‘ '
" BRITTA G. HINRICHSEN

Trial Attorneys

Environmental Enforcement Section

Environment & Natural Resources Division

United States Department of Justice

P.O. Box 7611 ,

Washington, D.C. 20044
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. Respectfully submitted,. |

FOR THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

N,

WILLIAM J.GHLENFELD, T
United States'Attorney

Asststant Umted States Attomey
' U. S, Courthouse and Federal Bulldmg
1125 Chapline Street
Wheeling, WV 26003
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